
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd.  
Wednesday, December 12, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. 

 
 

 

 

  

 

Call to Order           Action Required 

 

  

1. Approval of the Nov 14, 2018 Special Meeting Minutes                             Approval 

 

2. Public Comments  TBD 

 

3. Recognition of Service Awards  None 

 

4. Marketing Publications   

a. myStop mobile application video      None 

b.  Citrus Connection TV Episodes      None 

 

5. Finance / David Persaud   

a. LAMTD Financials        None 

b. PCTS Financials        None 

c. TD Financials        None 

 

6. Legal  

a. Assumption of Winter Haven Motor Pool Approval 

       

7. Additional Fixed Route Operator Positions / Aaron Dunn Approval  

 

8. Citrus Connection Demographics and Attrition Report / Steven Schaible None 

 

9. Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips 

a. Agency Update(s)  None 

 

         

10.  Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips      

 a.    November Calendar        None 

      b.    Ridership and UAP Update                                                 None 

      

      

11. Other Business  TBD 

 

                                                                                       

Adjournment 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #1 

 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of the November 14, 2018 LAMTD Meeting 

Minutes 

 

Presenter: James Phillips 

  

Recommended  

Action: Board approval of the November 14, 2018 LAMTD Meeting 

Minutes 

    

 

Attachments: November 14, 2018 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, November 14, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner John Hall 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker  
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage 

 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips  
Executive Assistant: James Phillips  
 
 
 

Call to Order 
7:30 a.m. By Chairman Phillip Walker 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 
1. Approval request for the approval of the October 26, 2018 LAMTD Special meeting minutes. 

 
“Approval of October 26, 2018 LAMTD Special meeting minutes” 
1st Don Selvage/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

 
 

        
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  

   Ms. Mary Lee spoke to needing more time on bus routes with extended services. 
Tom Phillips welcomed back Don Selvage. 

 

Agenda Item #3 – Voice of the Rider – Steven Gunn / Dave Walters 
V i d e o  h i g h l i g h t i n g  o n e  o f  o u r  v a l u e d  r i d e r s  

 
 
 

Agenda Item #4 – Finance / David Persaud, CFO 
a. Resolution 19-01 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the signing and submission 
of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of 
Transportation, the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, 
and the purchase of vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a 
grant award. 

“Approval of Resolution 19-01” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

b. Resolution 19-02 
A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  authorizing the signing and submission 
of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, November 14, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Transportation, the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, 
and the purchase of vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a 
grant award. 

“Approval of Resolution 19-02” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

c. Resolution 19-03 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  authorizing the signing and submission of a 
grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation, 
the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and the purchase of vehicles 
and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant award. “Approval of Resolution 19-
03” 

1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
d. Resolution 19-04 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  authorizing the signing and submission of a 
grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of 
Transportation, the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and 
the purchase of vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant 
award. 

1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Agenda Item #5 – Legal / Tim Darby 
a. Insurance Agreements with Local Partners 

The Lakeland Area Mass Transit District by entering these agreements with our local community transit 

partners will be able to save their agencies operating costs that can be transferred to provide more 

services 

“Approve the agreements between local community transportation partners and 
LAMTD to add to our insurance plan.” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
b. Resolution 19-05 

A resolution relating to district boundaries; approving an enlargement of the district; including within the 

district certain territory in Lakeland, Florida, located at state road 33 north, Lakeland, Florida 33809; 

finding approval by the property owner; finding compliance with the county ordinance; providing an 

effective date. 

“Approve resolution 19-05 to enlarge the district” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, November 14, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

c. Resolution 19-06 

A resolution relating to district boundaries; approving an enlargement of the district; including within the 

district certain territory in Lakeland, Florida, located at 2580 Kathleen road, Lakeland, Florida 33810; 

finding approval by the property owner; finding compliance with the county ordinance; providing an 

effective date. 

“Approve resolution 19-06 to enlarge the district” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Don Selvage 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Agenda Item #6 – Fleet Replacement Plan / Joseph Cheney 
a. Update to the Fleet Replacement Plan and CIP 

FLEET 
In February 2018, the Board received an update to the Fleet Replacement Plan and the CIP budget for 
LAMTD for FY 2019. The attached budget provides the means to fund the Modem upgrade for the AVAIL 
ITS System and purchase shop tools and equipment for Polk County. 
 
AVAIL SYSTEM MODEM UPGRADE 
The AVAIL ITS and Fare Collection System currently communicates using a 3G Modem.  The 3G Technology 
will sunset and no longer be supported as of December 2019.  Additionally, the desired functionality 
desired for Fare Collection and other upgrades will require the use of a 4G Modem to properly 
communicate from our buses to the land-based computer servers.  This cost also reflects a savings of over 
$48,000 for using Citrus Connection employees to complete the removal of older Modem and the 
installation of new Modems. 
 
SHOP TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 
This portion of the budget will provide the means to purchase tools such as TIG Welder, Automotive Shop 
Specialty Tools, Electronic Test Equipment and Facility Maintenance Equipment. 
 
VIDEO SURVEILLENCE SYSTEM 
Staff is presently working on a new standard for video surveillance onboard our buses.  Funding request 
will be delayed until the 2nd quarter of FY19 following a demonstration of a proof of concept bus and 
demonstration of system capabilities. 
  
 
FY 2018-19 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
  
AVAIL ITS System Modem Replacement Upgrade $90,000.00  
All modems in all buses will be upgraded from 3G to 4G Technology. 
Citrus will perform the installation of the new modems with an estimated savings of $48,568 in labor. 
Additional FM Maintenance vehicles will be added to the program to facilitate remote location monitoring 
of these vehicles.  
Shop Tools & Equipment $10,000.00  
TIG WELDER  
Automotive Shop Specialty Tools  
Computers & Electronic Test Equipment new G4 I/O Control Systems  
Facility Maintenance Equipment  
Video Surveillance System Bus Upgrade TBD 
This program will provide a new standard for video surveillance in our buses with remote access from any 
location.  
A proof of concept for this upgrade is currently being installed in one of our buses.  Once we have 
demonstrated the desired improvement for remote access, video storage and download, we will return to 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, November 14, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

the board to demonstrate the product and request approval for funding.  
TOTAL EXPENSES $100,000.00  
  
CIP PROJECTS THAT WILL REMAIN UNFUNDED FOR FY18-19 
    
Pre-Trip Function with the AVAIL System $27,453.00  
Vehicle Health Monitoring Function-AVAIL System $74,479.00  
Web Content Management- AVAIL System $21,825.00  
Cellular Data Cost for Wi-Fi Public Access (3-years) AVAIL System $327,600.00  
Mobile Fare Application -AVAIL (Cell Phone Payment System) TBD 
Fall Prevention System $60,000.00  
Public Wi-Fi Setup -AVAIL System $4,384.00  
TOTAL OF UNFUNDED PROJECTS $515,741.00 Approve the Communication of the CIP Budget Expense of 
$100,000 to the BoCC for approval. 
 

“Approve the Communication of the CIP Budget Expense of $100,000 to the BoCC for 
approval.” 
1st Don Selvage/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

b. County Fleet Plan Update PowerPoint 
PowerPoint highlighting the up to date status to the fleet to include mileage and possible replacement 
planning. 

Agenda Item #7 – Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips 
 
a. Agency Updates 

-Hillsborough transit initiative passed and possibility of bringing it back to Polk County. 
-Marketing awards from FPTA 
-Thanked Mr. Mele 
-Ft. Meade Fair share signed 
-FDOT has approved the road diet 
-Lake Miriam super stop on hold 
-Lakeland tapestries are up 
 

b. Organizational Chart Update 
Budgetary neutral update to the current organization. 
[See attached]  

 
Agenda Item #8 – Executive Informational Update / Tom Phillips 
a. October Calendar 

[See attached] 
 

b. Ridership and UAP Update 
[See attached] 
 

Agenda Item #9 – Other Business 
None 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, November 14, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
Adjournment at 9:44 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved this 12th day of December, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Chairman – City Commissioner Phillip Walker Minutes Recorder – James Phillips 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 

 

 

Presenter: TBD 

 

 

Recommended  

Action: TBD 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 3 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Recognition of Service Awards 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

 

Summary: Recognition of service to our dedicated employees and our 

county partners. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 4a 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: myStop mobile application video 

 

Presenter: David Walters 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

 

Summary: Video demonstrating how to install and set-up the mobile 

app associated with myStop 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 4b 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Citrus Connection TV Episodes 

 

Presenter: David Walters 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

 

Summary: Video presentation highlighting two episodes from our 

internal communication video. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #5a 
 

 

Agenda Item: October 31, 2018 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 

 FY 2018-19 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date October 31, 2018 

FY 2018-2019 

Year to Date October 31, 2018 

 

Description YTD of FY  
Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 8.3% $895,920 $136,920 15.3% $10.8 Million 

Expenses YTD 8.3% $895,920 $704,600 79% $10.8 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through October 31, 2018 totaled $136,920 or 15% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $53,500 or 96% of budgeted revenues through October 31, 2018.  
 

• Contract revenues totaled $11,620 or 68 % of the budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access Passes).  
 

• Other Contract Revenues totaled $0 under budget for RAMCO. RAMCO payment of $93,000  
Will be billed in January. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect no activity. The total budgeted revenues are $4.7 million. Only 95% of the taxes are 
budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 

➢ 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
➢ 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
➢ 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
➢ 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.7 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean 
the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date revenues totaled $126,813. 

 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.4 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 
means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized. The year-to-date revenues totaled $1.1 million. 
 

• Advertising income reflects $14,972 in line with budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget. 
 

• The other revenues are showing a lag due to timing and being on a cash basis. 
 

 
 
 

 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date October 31, 2018 

FY 2018-2019 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through October 31, 2018 totaled $704,600 or 79% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 64% of the FY 2018-2019 budget.  As of October 31, 2018, these expenses 
totaled $511,000 or 11% under budget of $575,000. 

 

• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $1,850 of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 
 

• Other services expenses totaled $5,640 of the YTD budget, under budget due to cost for temporary employees 
in Finance- budgeted in salaries account.  

 

• Fuel expenses totaled $66,600 YTD, over budget; due to fuel cost is expensed not in inventory. 
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $52,086 under budget, a favorable variance. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are under budget a favorable variance. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments under budget, since payments are quarterly 
and annually.  
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through October 31, 2018 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through October 31st the financials reflect are unfavorable 
actual variance of $567,650 with 8% of the fiscal year.  

 
 

 
 
* Total 10.04%, LAMTD 14.80%, PCTS 2.26% 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 9/30/17 9/30/16             9/30/15             9/30/14             9/30/13             

1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)       10.04% 13.95% 25.50% 23.08% 25.16% 

2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $106.94 $104.76 $89.45 $86.29 $83.84 

3.  Revenue Hours                                           142,189 139,228 103,550 117,008 116,422 

4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $834,971 $757,485 $847,360 $1,316,739 $1,367,289 

5.  Ridership                                                   1,346,211 1,393,620 1,424,965 1,647,010 1,638,470 

* 

 



FY 2019

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

MONTH OF  Oct 2018 (SoRE 6/3/15)

 Month YTD Approved Annual 

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

$'s % $'s %

REVENUES: Account

R4 Farebox/Pass Sales 53,494$              55,833$              (2,339)$               -4% 53,494$              55,833$              (2,339)$               -4% 670,000$            

R6 Contract Income (UAP) 11,621$              17,025$              (5,404)$               -32% 11,621$              17,025$              (5,404)$               -32% 204,300$            

R3 Other Contract Revenue -$                        7,800$                (7,800)$               -100% -$                        7,800$                (7,800)$               -100% 93,600$              

R5 Miscellaneous Income                    8,821$                2,917$                5,905$                202% 8,821$                2,917$                5,905$                202% 35,000$              

R7 Advertising Revenue                     14,972$              12,500$              2,472$                20% 14,972$              12,500$              2,472$                20% 150,000$            

R8 Investment/Interest Income (net) 12,198$              5,833$                6,365$                109% 12,198$              5,833$                6,365$                109% 70,000$              

R9 Ad Valorum Income, net -$                        389,136$            (389,136)$           -100% -$                        389,136$            (389,136)$           -100% 4,669,630$         

R10 FDOT Operating Grant -$                        143,423$            (143,423)$           -100% -$                        143,423$            (143,423)$           -100% 1,721,080$         

R11 Federal Operating Grant -$                        203,380$            (203,380)$           -100% -$                        203,380$            (203,380)$           -100% 2,440,560$         

R13 Cost Recovery -$                        833$                   (833)$                  -100% -$                        833$                   (833)$                  -100% 10,000$              

R17 City of Lakeland -$                        18,048$              (18,048)$             -100% -$                        18,048$              (18,048)$             -100% 216,570$            

R1 Bartow Express -$                        1,203$                (1,203)$               -100% -$                        1,203$                (1,203)$               -100% 14,440$              

R2 PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 35,811$              37,983$              (2,173)$               -6% 35,811$              37,983$              (2,173)$               -6% 455,800$            

Reserve

TOTAL REVENUES 136,917$            895,915$            (758,998)$           -85% 136,917$            895,915$            (758,998)$           -85% 10,750,980$       

ELIGIBLE EXPENSES:

1 Salaries 347,672$            396,968$            (49,296)$             -12% 347,672$            396,968$            (49,296)$             -12% 4,763,620$         

2 Employee Benefits 163,644$            177,621$            (13,977)$             -8% 163,644$            177,621$            (13,977)$             -8% 2,131,450$         

3 Advertising Fees 513$                   3,833$                (3,321)$               -87% 513$                   3,833$                (3,321)$               -87% 46,000$              

4 Professional & Techinical Ser 1,853$                33,817$              (31,964)$             -95% 1,853$                33,817$              (31,964)$             -95% 405,800$            

5 Contract Maintenance Services 5,932$                8,400$                (2,468)$               -29% 5,932$                8,400$                (2,468)$               -29% 100,800$            

6 Other Services 5,641$                4,929$                712$                   14% 5,641$                4,929$                712$                   14% 59,150$              

7 Fuel & Lubricants 66,609$              50,246$              16,363$              33% 66,609$              50,246$              16,363$              33% 602,950$            

8 Freight 45$                     808$                   (764)$                  -94% 45$                     808$                   (764)$                  -94% 9,700$                

9 Repairs & Maintenance -$                        4,050$                (4,050)$               -100% -$                        4,050$                (4,050)$               -100% 48,600$              

10 Materials & Supplies 52,086$              63,155$              (11,069)$             -18% 52,086$              63,155$              (11,069)$             -18% 757,860$            

11 Utilities/Telephone 10,293$              9,426$                868$                   9% 10,293$              9,426$                868$                   9% 113,110$            

13 Liab & Prop Damage Insurance 24,222$              19,333$              4,888$                25% 24,222$              19,333$              4,888$                25% 232,000$            

14 Other Coporate Insurance -$                        100$                   (100)$                  -100% -$                        100$                   (100)$                  -100% 1,200$                

15 Dues & Subscriptions 305$                   3,658$                (3,353)$               -92% 305$                   3,658$                (3,353)$               -92% 43,900$              

16 Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 7,913$                9,142$                (1,229)$               -13% 7,913$                9,142$                (1,229)$               -13% 109,700$            

17 Service Charges 2,037$                1,150$                887$                   77% 2,037$                1,150$                887$                   77% 13,800$              

18 Office Expense 4,755$                7,558$                (2,804)$               -37% 4,755$                7,558$                (2,804)$               -37% 90,700$              

19 Advertising & Promotions -$                        -$                        -$                        0% -$                        -$                        -$                        0% -$                        

20 Miscellaneous Expenses 31$                     2,446$                (2,415)$               -99% 31$                     2,446$                (2,415)$               -99% 29,350$              

21 Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm -$                        14,017$              (14,017)$             -100% -$                        14,017$              (14,017)$             -100% 168,200$            

22 LDDA, CRA Contributions                 -$                        18,048$              (18,048)$             -100% -$                        18,048$              (18,048)$             -100% 216,570$            

23 Capital Expenditures/ Debt Service 11,014$              56,717$              (45,702)$             -81% 11,014$              56,717$              (45,702)$             -81% 680,600$            

24 Bad Debt -$                        167$                   (167)$                  -100% -$                        167$                   (167)$                  -100% 2,000$                

25 Restricted Contingency                  -$                        10,327$              (10,327)$             -100% -$                        10,327$              (10,327)$             -100% 123,920$            

TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPENSES: 704,563$            895,915$            (191,352)$           -21% 704,563$            895,915$            (191,352)$           -21% 10,750,980$       

NET REVENUES OVER

(UNDER)  EXPENSES (567,647)$           -$                        (567,647)$           (567,647)$           -$                        (567,647)$           -$                        

  

Footnote : 

  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #5b 
 

Agenda Item: October 31, 2018 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2018-19 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

  

Recommended  

Action: None  

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #5b 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 

              Month of October 31, 2018 

                      Year to Date Report 

              Percent of FY Reported (8.3%) 

 

 

 

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $89,500 or 16% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The FTA grant drawdown reflects no activity. 

➢ Fare Revenues totaled $10,400 or 83% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The Polk County City Contributions reflects one payment. 

➢ The County funding is designed to reflect the first payment for the budgeted 

grants match totaling $1,148,353 Due in October 2018. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $430,400 or 76% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $284,000 or 86% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $147,000 or 91% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ The contract services are for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other 

planned contractual services is zero and lagging. 

 

 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Financial Statement 

Polk County Contract 
Month of October 2018 

 
   

 

 

Annual 

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Revenues 

County Match 1,960,700$          163,392$          -$                    0%

Other Contract Revenue - County         191,600$             15,967$            -$                    0%

City Contribution 393,040$             32,753$            79,097$          241%

County Contribution - PCTS 76,378$               6,365$              -$                    0%

Fares 150,000$             12,500$            10,389$          83%

FDOT Block Grants:

GOV71 - WHAT/ADA 575,600$             47,967$            -$                    0%

RURAL AQR07 913,000$             76,083$            -$                    0%

FTA

FTA 5307 Grant 2,262,076$          188,506$          0%

Capital Grant - Federal 257,626$             21,469$            0%

Total 6,780,020$          565,002$          89,486$          16%

Labor 3,973,664$          331,139$          283,663$        86%

Contract 594,000$             49,500$            -$                    0%

Operating 1,944,730$          162,061$          146,676$        91%

Capital 267,626$             22,302$            -$                    0%

Total 6,780,020$          565,002$          430,339$        76%

Revenue

Expenses



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #5c 
 

Agenda Item: October 31, 2018 Financials for The Transportation 

Disadvantaged Program– FY 2018-19 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended  

Action: None  

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget 

 

 The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year starting 

July 1, 2018 and ends June 30, 2019. The funding is 90% State 

for the Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund and 10% 

matching funds funded by Polk County. There are some other 

third-party revenues for contract services. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM #5c 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

                                  The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

                 Month of October 31, 2018 

                      Year to Date Report 

             Percent of FY Reported (8.3%) 

 

 

 

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $.48 million or 100% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $378,000 or 87% of the grants. 

➢ Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $60,000. 

➢ The County funding for the match totaled $42,000 or 87%. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $.38 million or 79% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $258,000 or 98% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $79,000 or 46% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Support Services for Operations totaled $44,000 or 94% of the YTD Budget. 

 

 



Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total YTD

Revenues 

County Match 10% 144,500$                         48,167$                           41,972$           87%

Contract Revenue 205$                                68$                                  59,967$           

FDOT Grants: -$                                     

CTD Grant -Operating 1,300,175$                      433,392$                         377,747 87%

Total 1,444,880$                      481,627$                         479,686$         100%

Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total YTD

Labor 785,751$                         261,917$                         $257,804 98%

-$                                 

Support Services 139,692$                         46,564$                           43,569$           94%

-$                                 

Operating 519,437$                         173,146$                         79,285$           46%

Total 1,444,880$                      481,627$                         380,657$         79%

Expenditure

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District

Transportation Disadvantage Program

October, 2018

Revenue



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 6a 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Assumption of Winter Haven Motor Pool 

 

Presenter: Tim Darby  

 

Recommended  

Action: Approve the Assignment, Assumption, and Amendment 

Lease between Polk County and Lakeland Area Mass 

Transit District 

 

 

Summary: The Lakeland Area Mass Transit District will take over 

and assume responsibility for the Winter Haven 

Motorpool. 













































LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

 

 
Agenda Item: Additional Fixed Route Operator Positions  

 

Presenter: Aaron Dunn, Director of Revenue Services    

 

Recommended 

Action: Approve the conversion of 1 Transit Supervisor position into 2 fixed route 

operator positions to improve the efficiency of the LAMTD     

 

Summary: A comprehensive operational analysis of the fixed route service was 

conducted for operational optimization. The Optimum Sizing & Strategies 

and Guide for Calculating Optimal Bus Forecast tools were utilized to 

facilitate this analysis from the Transit Cooperative Research Program 

(TCRP) Report 135, CUTR Project #BD549-23, Dallas Area Rapid 

Transit (DART) study, and the Manatee County Area Transit (MCAT) 

2017 study.     

  

 The results of the analysis indicated that Citrus Connection’s fixed route 

supervisor-to-operator ratio is higher than similar transit agencies. 

Specifically, our like-sized peers in size and scope including: VOLTRAN 

MCAT, LEETRAN, PCPT, and Brevard Transit, who maintain an average 

of 13-to-1 operator-to-supervisor ratio for optimum performance, were 

utilized for comparative analysis. Converting a supervisor position into 

two operator positions would improve our ratio from the current 1-to-7, to 

1-to-8 supervisor-to-operator ratio.     

 

This conversion will also help Citrus Connection meet the 1,400 per-week 

work hour requirement (35 positions) by decreasing the weekly work hour 

deficit from 160 hours to 80 weekly hours.  

 

     

Funding: Reclassifying the transit supervisor position into two Operator positions 

can be accomplished with existing funding. The transit supervisor salary is 

budgeted at approximately $76,440. The two bus operator positions 

combined will cost approximately $89,856. The transit supervisor position 

is currently vacant and will remain vacant for the next 90 days, freeing up 

$19,110. The budgeted salaries for the transit supervisor position and the 

cost savings for the 90-day period will fund the operator positions for the 

fiscal year.    

   

   
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 8 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Citrus Connection Demographics and Attrition Report  

 

Presenter: Steven Schaible, Director of Human Resources 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational  

 

Summary: Review of last fiscal year employment demographics: 

1. Turnover 

a. by Department 

b. Voluntary & Involuntary turnover 

c. by Gender & EEO 

2. Age Demographic 

3. EEO Demographic 

4. Hiring Demographic 

5. Amended EEO Utilization Report 

6. Workers Comp Report 

 

Attachments: See attached Citrus Connection Turnover, Hiring and 

EEO Analysis December 12, 2018; Workers 

Compensation Report; Amended EEO Utilization 

Analysis 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Citrus Connection Turnover, Hiring and EEO Analysis 

December 12, 2018 

 

TURNOVER: Benchmarking employee turnover is a healthy exercise to understand how 
we rank as an employer. Keep in mind that each transit agency is different and faces its 
own set of unique challenges. As a general rule, turnover cannot be avoided so it is 
better to focus on a known number (past turnover) and then look to improve over time 
as unnecessary turnover is costly to an organization. Citrus Connection turnover is 
moving in the right direction over the last few years, but there is more work to do.  

 

Think of improving turnover as like a runner might think about a race. They may not be 
the fastest on the field, but as long as they continually improve against the past; 
important progress is being made. With that being said, there are a few ways to 
benchmark turnover. 

It is common for an organization to start segmenting employee turnover by gender, age, 

geography, and other attributes; and then start looking at the data. The process of 

analyzing data is guided by assumptions. In order to find a direction, we need to dig 

deeper and collect the richest feedback possible.  

 

 

2015 2016 2017 2018

39 54 50 47

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Turnover By Fiscal Year



Fiscal Year October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017; there were a total of 50 

terminations. Of those 50 separations, 15 were involuntary and 25 were voluntary. 

Overall turnover for Citrus Connection was 30%. It was noted that there were 16 

terminations that occurred within the first 90 days of employment. It was apparent that 

improvements needed to be made to the new hire selection process.  

 

 

 
 

 

Fiscal Year October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018; there were a total of 47 

separations. Of those 47 separations, 15 were involuntary and 25 were voluntary. 

Overall turnover this fiscal year is 26%. It was noted that there were 12 terminations that 

occurred within the first 90 days of employment.   

 

 
 

TENURE - The primary goal of this is to understand the stage of the employee lifecycle 
that might have an influence. In other words, if an employee churns in the first three 
months, it is most likely an onboarding/recruiting problem. If they leave after a few 
years, it may be due to limited learning and development programs. 

16

7

12

7

4 4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

90 Days 90<Year 1 yr-<2yr 2yr-<5yr 5yr-<10yr 10+yr

FY 2017 Separations by Tenure

12

8

12
11

3

1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

90 Days 90<Year 1 yr-<2yr 2yr-<5yr 5yr-<10yr 10+yr

FY 2018 Separations by Tenure



 

Efforts by the Human Resources and Operations to improve the hiring process began in 

February 2018. It should be noted that Operations has the largest employee base; also 

efforts have been made to the process to improved retention during the first 90 days. 

Operation has the greatest amount of investment into a new hire (up to 8 weeks 

training). Some of these improvements include: 

1. Realistic job preview (HR & Ops) 

2. Increased background checking intensity (HR) 

3. Documented verification of previous employment (HR) 

4. Consistent hiring manager (Ops) 

5. Stay interviews (HR) 

 

The following graph provides a visual data point for employee turnover by department at 

Citrus Connection during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018.  

 

 
 

 

The graph below graphs turnover in Fiscal Years 2015 to 2018. The graph contrasts the 

last four (4) fiscal years by departmental turnover.  

 

 

 

Fixed Para Admin Maint Call Center

2018 FY Department Turnover
FY2018

22 6 9 9 1

0
10
20
30

2018 FY Department Turnover  FY2018

22

2
4

9

2

24

9 9 9

3

13
16

9
6 6

22

6
9 9

1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Fixed Para Admin Maint Call Center

FY2015-FY2018 DEPARTMENT Turnover

2015 to 2018 FY Department Turnover  FY2015

2015 to 2018 FY Department Turnover  FY2016

2015 to 2018 FY Department Turnover  FY2017

2015 to 2018 FY Department Turnover  FY2018



 

 

ECONOMIC CLIMATE WILDCARD- Voluntary employee turnover is higher when 
people know they can find another job. As such, the economic climate has a major 
influence on turnover. If the economy is doing poorly, it is likely that turnover will be 
lower than normal. Employees in a poor economic climate stay; however, they will likely 
have a greater degree of disengagement.  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 

 

The improvement (or lack thereof) cannot be accomplished by looking at raw data 

points without some context. The following is a comprehensive collection of data on all 

employee demographics and hiring.  

 

Involuntary Voluntary

19 28

0

10

20

30

2018 FY Turnover Voluntary v Involuntary

29

18

2018 FY Turnover by Gender

Males

Females

21

0

11

0

15

0

5

10

15

20

25

White Other Hispanic Asian Black

Turnover by EEO



AGE DEMOGRAPHIC: The median age for Polk County is 40.1 years (2010 Census) the 
median age for Citrus Connection employees for FY 2017 was 52 years, mean age is 
49 years. In FY 2018 the median age moved to 51 years and mean age is 48.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65+

Series1 4 6 11 19 11 24 25 37 29 6

0

10

20

30

40
FY 2017 Citrus Connection Age Demographics

20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65+

10 9 10 18 11 25 28 34 30 7

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

FY 2018 Citrus Connection Age Demographics

20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65+

2017 FY 4 6 11 19 11 24 25 37 29 6

FY 2018 10 9 10 18 11 25 28 34 30 7

FY2017 & FY2018 Employee Age Demographic



 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit is mandated by the FTA to collect data and annually report 

on organizational EEO.  Below pie chart shows the 2010 US Census demographics for  

City of Lakeland, Polk County and State of Florida, as well as the 2018 LAMTD 

employee data. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

White 
64%Other 

2%

Hispanic
18%

Asian
2%

Black 
14%

Polk County Demographics 2010 Census

White
57.9%

Other 
1.7%

Hispanic
12.6%

Asian
1.6% Black

16%

Florida Demographics 2010 Census

White 
56%

Other 1%

Hispanic 
18%

Asian 
3%

Black 33%

FY 2018  Employee EEO Demographics

White 
63 %

Other
1.7%

Hispanic 
12.6%

Asian
1.8%

Black
20.9%

Lakeland FL 2010 Demographics



The Citrus Connection Human Resources department has had some changes in the 
procedures of recruiting, which includes an increase in the tracking of EEO classes.  

Below are demographics that include race and gender. During the 2018 fiscal year 
Citrus Connection has hired diverse races through constant recruiting within the rural 
Polk County area. Some of the reported new hires were hired through 
recommendations of current employees; what better way to gain new hires, than to hire 
from those that are well established. 

 

HIRING: During the FY 2018 there were 53 new hires. 

 

 

 

26

0

12

1

14

0

10

20

30

White Other Hispanic Asian Black

FY 2018 EEO Hiring 
Demographics

25
MALES

28 Females 

FY 2018 Hiring by Gender



























LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Agency Updates 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational 

 

Summary: Oral presentation 

  

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 10a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: November calendar 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational 

 

Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in October. 

  

 

 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: DECEMBER 12, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM 10b 
 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Ridership Report 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, ED 

 

Recommended  

Action: Information only 

 

 

 

Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 

Response through October, 2018. 

  

  

 

 

Attachments: Ridership Report. 

  

 

 













LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: NOVEMBER 14, 2018  

AGENDA ITEM#11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Other Business 

 

Presenter: TBD 

 

Recommended  

Action: TBD 

 

Summary: TBD 

  

 

 


	0- AGENDA
	1- Approval of LAMTD Minutes
	1-Board Minutes Nov 14, 2018
	2 - Public Comments
	3- Recognition of Service Awards
	4a- Marketing Publications_myStop
	4b- Marketing Publications_CCTV
	5a- LAMTD Agenda ITEM FS  -OCT2018
	5a- Financial Report OCT2018
	5a- LAMTD October 2018 (Debbie's Copy)
	5b- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  -Oct2018
	5b- LAMTD pcts Agenda ITEM  -Oct2018
	5b- Board Meeting PCTS - Oct 2018
	5c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  -Oct2018
	5c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  -Summary Oct2018
	5c- Copy of TD - October Financials
	6a - Assumption of Winter Haven Motor Pool
	6a- SKM_C36818101713580
	7- Agenda Item FR Position
	8- BOD Agenda Item HR Demographics
	8- Demographics and Turnover 2018
	8- Amended EEO AAP_Worker's Comp Report
	9 - BOD Agenda Item Agency Updates
	10a - BOD Agenda Item Novembercalendar
	10a - November Calendar
	10b - Agenda Item Ridership and UAP numbers
	10b- Dec Ridership
	11 - BOD Agenda Item Other business

